
 
 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY PANEL AGENDA 
 

Date: 
 

Wednesday, 14 July 2021 

Time: 
 

7.00 pm 

Venue: 
 

Virtual Meeting 

6 July 2021 
 

PART 1 

1. Apologies.  

2. Notification of Substitute Members, if any.  

3. To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting. (Pages 3 - 8) 

4. Urgent Items of Business, if any. (24 hours notice to be provided to the Chairman).  

5. Declaration of Interests:-  

  Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 Other Interests 

 

6. Questions to Portfolio Holders, if any.  

 (At least two clear days notice required, in writing, to the Proper Officer in 
accordance with Procedure Rule 15). 

 
 

7. Conservation Area Character Appraisals. (Presentation)  

8. Rural Sports Villages (Pages 9 - 16) 

9. Work Programme (Pages 17 - 18) 

 Any additional items to be added to the Work Programme: 
 Chair’s Items 

 Members’ Items 

 
 
MARK TRILLO 
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR & MONITORING OFFICER 
 
 
 

You can view the agenda 
online by using a smart 
phone camera and 
scanning the code below: 

 

Public Document Pack



Membership of Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 
Councillor R Ward (Chair) Councillor I Herdman (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor J Aberley Councillor G Bentley 
Councillor C Brady Councillor J Davies 
Councillor B Emery Councillor K Flunder 
Councillor N Hawkins Councillor K Hoptroff 
Councillor B A Hughes Councillor L Page 
Councillor H Plimley Councillor D Price 
Councillor J Redfern Councillor P Roberts 
Councillor J Salt Councillor H Sheldon MBE 
Councillor P Wood  

 



1 
 

 

STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

SERVICE DELIVERY OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY 
PANEL MEETING 

 

Minutes 
 

WEDNESDAY, 17 MARCH 2021 
 
PRESENT: Councillor R Ward (Chair)   
 
 Councillors J Aberley, G Bentley, C Brady, J Davies, B Emery, 

K Flunder, A Hart, N Hawkins, I Herdman, K Hoptroff, L Page, 
D Price, J Redfern, P Roberts, J Salt and H Sheldon MBE. 

 
ALSO PRESENT: Councillor C J S Atkins, M Bowen, M A Deaville, M Gledhill, 

G Heath, T Holmes, K J Jackson, B Johnson, L A Malyon, K Martin, 
I Plant, J Porter, S E Ralphs MBE, P Routledge, S Scalise, 
L Swindlehurst and P Wilkinson. 

 
APOLOGIES: Councillor H Plimley. 
 

38 NOTIFICATION OF SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS, IF ANY. 
 
Councillor Heath substituted for Councillor Plimley. 
 

39 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING. 
 
Councillor Salt referred to her question at the previous meeting to the Portfolio 
Holder, in relation to the refurbishment of the lanterns in Biddulph and advised that 
she had not received a timescale or name of the responsible officer. 
 
DECIDED –  That the minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 27 January 2021 

be approved as a correct record and signed by the Chair. 
 

40 URGENT ITEMS OF BUSINESS, IF ANY. (24 HOURS NOTICE TO BE 
PROVIDED TO THE CHAIRMAN). 
 
There were none. 
 

41 DECLARATION OF INTERESTS:- 
 

Agenda Item 
Member Declaring 

Interest 
Nature of Interest 

Agenda Item  9 – 
Cheadle Town Centre 

Projects 
Cllr Wilkinson 

Other – Owns a business on 
High Street, Cheadle. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 March 2021 
 

2 
 

Agenda Item 
Member Declaring 

Interest 
Nature of Interest 

Agenda Item – Not 
specified. 

Cllr Price 
Other – Owns a business in 

Leek Town Centre. 

 
42 QUESTIONS TO PORTFOLIO HOLDERS, IF ANY. 

 
Question received from Councillor Hoptroff: - 
 
Q1. “There has been a lot of public backlash at the allocation of £22,500 on fees for 

the Leek Trestle Market consultation. It is perceived that the Cabinet have 
already made their decision, so any opposition to their plan that comes out of 
the consultation will be disregarded anyway. Can Councillor Wain justify the 
allocation of this money?” 

 
Response: 
Proposals to refurbish Leek Market Hall were discussed at the Service Delivery and 
Overview Panel meeting on 29th January 2020 where members highlighted the 
importance of consultation with members and traders. Some members of the Panel 
felt that a wider consultation of the proposals for the market should take place and 
suggested that a full public meeting should be held. In July 2020, the decision report 
to undertake a feasibility study and business case to explore options for Leek Market 
Hall was subject to a call in request where it was noted that ' A key aspect of the 
feasibility study is the commitment to a full consultation' and that 'the debate on the 
Trestle Market in the Council Chamber earlier this year was a full one which was well 
attended and many present continually emphasised the importance of wide 
consultation with as wide as possible'. 
 
In response to this, a specification was issued to appoint consultancy services for 
the preparation of a feasibility study and business case to explore possible 
enhancement and investment to Leek Market Hall to provide improved retail facilities 
and trader opportunities. 
 
7 tenders were received and assessed. Quarterbridge Project Management were 
awarded the contract, having the best technical competence score and best 
commercial (Vfm) score. The submitted costs from the 6 other tenders ranged 102% 
to 159% of Quarterbridge’s submission. 
 
The specification also requested that widespread consultation was undertaken to 
inform the feasibility study and business case report. Stakeholder consultation has 
been conducted with District Councillors, Leek East Ward Councillors, Leek Town 
Councillors, Archer Fairs (licensed antique market operator), Stall holders and 
Leek's business community. A final report is expected in April. 
 
By way of supplementary questions, Councillor Hoptroff informed the Panel that the 
public were concerned that the outcome of the consultation had been pre-judged 
and requested assurance that all comments made in the report would be taken into 
account. 
 
Councillor Ralphs was of the opinion that this query didn’t relate to the original 
question. The public backlash referred to by Councillor Hoptroff, related to the spend Page 4



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 March 2021 
 

3 
 

on further consultation which had been requested as part of the Call-in procedure, 
rather than a feasibility study. It was confirmed that a final report would be 
considered by the Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel.   
 
Question received from Councillor Malyon: - 
 
Q2. “Could someone tell me why we have a member of the public as a Cabinet 
Members advisor from June 2019 to the present day?” 
 
Response:  
The Leader explained that she could request advice from anyone. This included 
advice from officers and when needed, from specialists in particular areas of work. 
Advisors were not paid or privy to any Cabinet meetings or documents. 
 
Councillor Malyon asked when this had been scrutinised and if advice on planning 
matters had been provided. In response, the Leader confirmed that scrutiny panels 
did not scrutinise her requests for advice and she did not have any involvement with 
planning matters, unless the application was within her ward. 
 
Questions received from Councillor Wilkinson:- 
 
Q3. “What are the operating times of Tape Street Car Park in Cheadle?” 
 
Response: 
The operational hours of the Tape Street Car Park are 8am – 6pm. Restrictions 
apply within these hours. However the chargeable hours are 9.30am – 3.30pm This 
means that customers are only required to pay and display between 9.30am to 
3.30pm.  
 
By way of supplementary questions, Councillor Wilkinson felt that these times were 
restrictive during the evening and should be changed in-line with other car parks in 
the area. The Leader suggested that this important query should be submitted as a 
question to the Car Parking Working Group and the Cheadle Stakeholder Panel.  
 
Q4. “This Council has spent in the region of £60,000 on consultants Cushman & 
Wakefield. Is there any justification in spending more money on consultation?” 
 
Response: 
 
Councillor Ralphs explained, that the consultation was a direct result of the Call-in of 
the Cheadle Town Centre Projects report in November 2020 and the Stakeholder 
Panel had also agreed for further consultation to be undertaken.  
 
Councillor Wilkinson highlighted the importance of the correct consultation, feedback 
to residents and requested the reasons previous projects had not come forward in 
Cheadle. 
 
In response, the Leader advised that these queries and requests for information 
would be dealt with by the Stakeholder Panel. The second supplementary question 
was around the Council’s budget for projects in Cheadle and if there would be a 
requirement for match funding. Councillor Ralphs explained that the Stakeholder 
Panel would identify projects that residents wished for in Cheadle. For any identified  
projects, a business case would need to be made and then funding would be sought.  
 Page 5



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 March 2021 
 

4 
 

Question received from Councillor Page:- 
 
Q5. “Please could Councillor Porter provide an update on the transfer of Wetley 
Moor Common to SWT as promised at the last Service Delivery meeting on 27 
January 2021?” 
 
Response:  
SMDC is continuing work behind the scenes to progress the transfer of eleven 
countryside sites to SWT not just Wetley Moor. Officers have met with colleagues 
from SWT and are in ongoing dialogue to ensure that the management arrangement 
that had previously been developed in 2018 remains fit for purpose for both 
organisations, due to the time that has passed since its initial development.  
Furthermore we have received a commitment from SOTCC that a report will be 
presented to their Cabinet in May in regards to the transfer of Wetley Moor and 
officers will work with colleagues to enable this to happen. It is expected that a 
further report will need to come back to members at SMDC once the final 
arrangements have been developed.   
 
 

43 CAR PARKING WORKING GROUP UPDATE.  (PRESENTATION) 
 
Katy Webster – Head of Assets, gave a presentation to provide an update on the 
Car Parking Working Group.  
 
The Council had made a commitment to review the car parks and renew the strategy 
to ensure car parks met the needs of residents and visitors.  
 
Parking Matters Consultants had been appointed, the first meeting of the Car 
Parking Working Group had taken place and the data collection exercise was 
complete. The importance of stakeholder engagement was highlighted and the 
various types of consultation was explained to the Panel. The emerging messages 
from the consultation so far included:- 
 

 The importance of the towns being treated individually  

 Key priorities were recovery from Covid-19, regeneration, growth and vital 
high streets 

 Payment options 

 Review of free parking periods 

 Improvement of the look, feel and infrastructure of car parks 
 
The final slide of the presentation set out the next steps of the Parking Strategy 
Review. 
 
Councillor Hart explained the importance of the Staffordshire Moorlands being a 
gateway to the Peak Park and as he was the Council’s representative for the Peak 
Park he offered to assist with the communication between the authorities.  
 
Members shared their concerns in relation to timescales and support for the high 
streets re-opening. It was suggested that free car parking should be offered until the 
end of June 2021. The concerns around the timescales were appreciated and the 
Portfolio Holder would discuss the request for free parking days with Cabinet. 
 

Page 6



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 March 2021 
 

5 
 

In response to a query around electric vehicles and the management of car parks by 
private companies, Katy Webster advised there were many options around the 
infrastructure and parking for electric vehicles and gave assurance that all options 
would be given consideration.  
 
The Panel also discussed a joined up approach to enforcement, the differing parking 
needs of the towns, rural areas and the overarching elements applicable to both. 
 
DECIDED: That the update be NOTED. 
 

44 LEEK MARKET HALL UPDATE. (VERBAL UPDATE) 
 
Sarah Porru – Head of Regeneration, provided an update on Leek Market Hall to the 
Panel. 
 
In May 2020, Cabinet agreed for a feasibility study to be carried out and for a 
business case to be prepared which looked at the options for investment at Leek 
Market Hall to improve the facility and increase footfall. 
 
Quarterbridge had been appointed and the consultants had considered baseline 
information regarding the current operation, cost information to the Council and 
comparison of charges. They also identified comparison markets and the 
lessons/ideas that could be taken from these as well as work to understand the 
existing and potential customer base.   
 
The consultants had spoken with a number of members and stakeholders which 
included the Leader of the Council, SMDC Portfolio holders, SMDC Leek East Ward 
Councillors, Leek Town Councillors, Archer Fairs (operated a licensed market on 
Friday in the Market Hall and Leek Blues & Americana Festival organisers. In 
addition, online surveys had been shared with market traders and Leek retailers. 
             
A draft report was due to be received which would put forward three possible options 
for enhancement of the market. The draft report would  be brought back to this Panel  
with details of potential benefits and level of investment required for each option. 
 
DECIDED: That the update be received. 
 

45 CHEADLE TOWN CENTRE PROJECTS. 
 
The Panel considered a report which set out the progress on Cheadle town centre 
projects since December 2020, including progress with procurement of a 
consultation programme on options for the regeneration of Cheadle town centre. 
 
Meetings of the Cheadle Stakeholder Panel had been held at the end of January and 
February this year.  The meetings had mapped a route to identifying any further 
options for Cheadle town centre and for ensuring a full public engagement with all 
issues and options for the town.  This timeline of steps was set out at paragraph 7.26 
of the report. 

A Stakeholder Workshop, facilitated by the Consultation Institute had been arranged. 
Outcomes from the Workshop would help to identify any alternatives to those options 
for Cheadle town centre set out in the Cushman & Wakefield study of May 2020. 

A public consultation exercise and survey, overseen by the Stakeholder Panel, was 
being commissioned to seek the views of local people, businesses and organisations Page 7



Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel - 17 March 2021 
 

6 
 

of Cheadle on all the regeneration issues and opportunities for the town centre.  The 
contract was expected to be awarded at the start of April. 

Following analysis of options, consultation responses and other public feedback in 
relation to car parking and the Leisure Centre, a report would be taken to Cabinet to 
propose a way forward and include the recommendation of a preferred option. 

The Council had secured funding under the One Public Estate programme to help 
deliver the preferred option once agreed. 
 
Discussion took place around the increased population of Cheadle which had led to 
increased demand for leisure facilities, the current site being the most appropriate 
location for the Leisure Centre and the recently awarded Disabled Facilities Grant for 
Changing Places facilities. 

 
Officers advised that a study of the facilities had identified that the Centre did not 
meet the current need of the growing population. It was confirmed that no options 
had been discounted in relation to the location of the Leisure Centre. A written 
response would be sent to Councillor Price in regard to the Changing Places 
Disabled Facilities Grant. 

 
The Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports clarified that the Disabled Facilities Grant 
investment showed a clear commitment to the Leisure Centre, which in his opinion, 
was in the correct location but was in need of improvement. Three excellent 
Stakeholder Panel meetings had taken place with numerous contributions from both 
residents and businesses of Cheadle. A fully inclusive consultation, to include 
surrounding areas, would inform the options for the Leisure Centre. A suggestion 
was made for the Parish Assembly to be a forum for the parishes to be kept up to 
date.  

 
DECIDED:  

 
1) The Panel NOTED the progress on Cheadle town centre projects; 
2) For the Panel to receive regular updates, as the consultation progressed. 

 
46 WORK PROGRAMME 

 
The Panel considered its Work Programme and agreed the items listed. 
 
Given the cost incurred by the Council for consultancy work, Councillor Salt enquired 
if it would be possible for the Council to look into the feasibility of degree level 
apprenticeship schemes being offered to assist with future consultation exercises.  
 
DECIDED: That the Work Programme for 2020-21 be agreed. 
 
 

The meeting closed at 8.30 pm 
 
 
 
 
_________________________________Chairman ____________________Date 

Page 8



  

 
STAFFORDSHIRE MOORLANDS DISTRICT COUNCIL 

 
Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel 

 
14 July 2021 

 

 
TITLE: 

 
Rural Sports Villages 

 
PORTFOLIO HOLDER: 

 
Councillor Mark Deaville - Deputy Leader & 
Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Sports 

 
CONTACT OFFICER: 

 
Robert Wilks - Principal Officer (Leisure and 
Recreation) 

 
WARDS INVOLVED: 
 

 
Churnet & Waterhouses 

 
 
 
 
1. Reason for the Report 
 
1.1 To update the Service Delivery Overview & Scrutiny Panel on the progress of 

the work undertaken to date to identify and support projects with a view to 
allocating outdoor sports capital funding towards local projects. 

 
2. Recommendation 

2.1 That the Panel notes the progress made towards identifying and supporting 
the development of outdoor sport and recreation capital projects across the 
District. 
 

2.2 That the Panel recommends that Cabinet approves the allocation of £6,500 to 
Waterhouses Parish Council and £5,000 to Kingsley Parish Council from the 
outdoor sports capital fund as detailed in the report.  

 
3. Executive Summary 
 
3.1 Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands is the Council’s Physical Activity 

and Sport Strategy which identifies key priorities and actions that the Council 
will take, supported by its partners, to enable residents to become more active. 
 

3.2 The Council has assigned £100,000 of capital funds in the current MTFP, to 
be used to towards supporting the delivery of local projects, with a focus on a 
‘sports village’ concept and particularly projects that are located in more rural 
areas of the District. 
 

3.3 During the last 18 months, officers have been supporting the development of a 
wide range of capital projects in Blythe Bridge, Forsbrook, Upper Tean, 

Page 9

Agenda Item 8



  

Waterhouses and Werrington which has included building relationships with 
Parish Councils, community organisations, sports clubs, schools and national 
governing bodies of sport, in order to help them develop ideas and potential 
projects. 
 

3.4 Waterhouses Parish Council has clear aspirations to enhance and improve the 
lives of their local community and have worked closely with residents to 
establish where financial investment can be best focussed. Improvements to 
the recreation ground have been identified and the Parish Council wishes to 
purchase a suite of specialist maintenance equipment including a tractor, roller 
mower and quadraplay to enable them to undertake enhanced maintenance to 
their sports pitches on an ongoing basis. 
 

3.5 The cost to purchase the equipment is £26,000 and £19,500 (75%) of this 
amount can be secured from the Football Foundation. In order to do so, the 
remaining £6,500 (25%) match funding must have been secured first and this 
therefore forms the basis of the request to allocate £6,500 towards this project 
from the outdoor sports capital fund. 
 

3.6 Should this be approved, officers will continue to support the Parish Council 
with their funding application to the Football Foundation and once all funding 
has been secured, help implement the project in partnership with the local 
football club over the coming months. 

  
3.7 Kingsley Parish Council has aspirations to improve their local recreation area 

and are developing a project to install new football goals, activity frame, 
disabled friendly swings and other sport/play equipment at the site which 
would benefit children and young people of different ages and abilities. It is 
requested that £5,000 is allocated from the outdoor sports capital budget 
towards this project. 
 

3.8 It is anticipated that a greater range of projects will start to come forwards as, 
in January 2021, the Council appointed a new Service Development Officer 
within the Service Commissioning Team. This role has a clear focus on 
identifying and supporting local projects of this nature and is already 
supporting a potential future project in Forsbrook alongside Forsbrook Parish 
Council to make improvements to recreational facilities at Jubilee Gardens. 
The initial plan is to help develop a process of community consultation which 
aims to confirm what improvements residents would like to see, and then, 
where appropriate, develop a costed delivery plan which could lead to a 
request for funds from this budget in the future.   

 
4.        How this report links to Corporate Priorities  
 
4.1 This report links to Aim 1 of the Council’s Corporate Plan “To help create a 

safter and healthier environment for our communities to live and work”. 
 
To deliver Aim 1 of the objective “Provision of sports facilities and leisure 
opportunities focused upon improving health”. 

 
 

Page 10



  

5. Alternative Options 
 
5.1 Recommend Cabinet approve the allocation of £6,500 to Waterhouses Parish 

Council and £5,000 to Kingsley Parish Council from the outdoor sports capital 
fund as detailed in the report. (recommended) 

 
5.2 Recommend Cabinet do not award funding to the projects as proposed, 

meaning that funding will need to be secured by the two Parish Councils from 
other sources. (not recommended) 

 
6. Implications 
 

6.1
  

Community Safety - (Crime and Disorder Act 1998) 
 
Creating improved sports facilities in local communities, particularly 
rural communities where opportunities and travel are generally 
more limited helps engage people, especially young people, in 
positive activities. 
 

6.2 Workforce 
 
Supporting the development of community projects is delivered by 
Council officers as part of their role. The delivery of capital projects 
will primarily be the responsibility of the partner organisation 
receiving funds and would not require any direct involvement from 
the Council. 
 

6.3 Equality and Diversity/Equality Impact Assessment 
 
An Equalities Impact Assessment has been completed for this 
project. 
 

6.4 Financial Considerations 
 
Should Cabinet approve this request, £11,500 from a total budget 
of £100,000 will be allocated from provisions within the latest 
Medium Term Financial Plan (MTFP) towards projects in 
Waterhouses and Whiston. 
 

6.5 Legal 
 
Waterhouses Parish Council and Kingsley Parish Council will both 
be responsible for purchasing the equipment outlined in the report 
and for the equipment and facilities ongoing 
operation/maintenance. 
 

6.6 Climate Change 
 
The provision of locally owned equipment will reduce the 
requirement to purchase maintenance services from external 
contractors who would transport their own equipment to site on a 

Page 11



  

regular basis using vehicles, thus reducing the overall carbon 
footprint for the project. 
 

6.7 
 

Consultation 
 
The project to improve the main pitch and create a second new 
pitch at the site in Waterhouses was identified in consultation with 
the local community. 
 

6.8 
 

Risk Assessment 
 
None. The two Parish Councils will be responsible for the 
purchase, storage, operations and maintenance of the equipment 
they are wishing to purchase to undertake the works outlined in the 
report.  

 
Mark Trillo 

Executive Director (Governance & Commissioning) 
 

Web Links and 
Background Papers 

Contact details 

Physical Activity and Sport Strategy, Towards an Active 
Staffordshire Moorlands 

Robert Wilks 
Principal Officer (Leisure and Recreation) 
robert.wilks@highpeak.gov.uk 
 

 
7. Detail 
 
7.1 Towards an Active Staffordshire Moorlands is the Council’s Physical Activity 

and Sport Strategy which identifies key priorities and actions that the Council 
will take, supported by its partners, to enable residents become more active. 
The strategy highlights 5 strategic objectives which are set out below; 

 
1) Supporting the inactive to become active through a universal physical activity 

offer 
 

2) Addressing inequalities in physical activity and sport engagement (with a focus 
on) 
a: Women and Girls 
b: People with limiting illness or disability 
c: People aged 55 years and over 
d: People in lower socioeconomic groups 
e: Children and young people (aged 5-18) 
 

3) Establish a place based approach with strategic partners 
a: Leek North 
b: Biddulph East 
c: Cheadle 
d: Forsbrook 
e: Cellarhead 
d: Endon 
 

Page 12



  

4) Maximise physical activity and sport opportunities using the natural 
environment 
 

5) Supporting our existing club and volunteer base to build capacity 
 

7.2 Developing or improving community sports facilities is an important aspect of 
delivering the aspirations of the strategy, particularly objectives 1,4 and 5.  

 
7.3 The Council has assigned £100,000 of capital funds in the current MTFP to be 

used towards supporting the delivery of local projects, with a focus on a ‘sports 
village’ concept and particularly projects that are located in more rural areas of 
the District. 

 
7.4 ‘Sports villages’ are often groups of facilities that provide a range of 

opportunities for local people to play sport or be physically active. In rural 
areas these often include facilities such as pavilion buildings, sports pitches, 
bowling greens, play areas and tennis courts. In many cases these are owned 
and maintained by community organisations or parish councils.  

 
7.5 It is important to recognise that delivering any capital project takes time to 

develop and that appropriate levels of due diligence should be undertaken by 
officers in order to protect the Council’s investment and assess whether a 
project is deliverable, meets strategic objectives, there is a robust business 
case and that the ongoing operation and maintenance of the asset is 
sustainable in the future.  

 
8.  Supported projects 
 
8.1 During the last 18 months officers have been supporting the development of a 

wide range of projects which has included building relationships with parish 
councils, community organisations, sports clubs, schools and national 
governing bodies of sport, in order to help them develop ideas and proposals. 
A list of these projects is included below; 

 

 Cellarhead – Conversion of AstroTurf pitch at Moorside High School 

 Draycott in the Moors – Possible development of new junior tennis and 
padel tennis facility 

 Forsbrook – Possible improvements to recreational facilities at Jubilee 
Gardens   

 Upper Tean – Possible improvements to playing pitches at the Wentlows 

 Waterhouses – Improvements to playing pitches at Waterhouses Sports 
Field (request for funds outlined at section 8.5- 8.9)  

 Werrington – Development of pump track facility at Meigh Road 

 Whiston – Enhancement to recreational and play facilities (request for 
funds outlined in section 8.10-8.11) 

 
8.2 In a number of these cases the projects which we are supporting have not yet 

reached the point whereby they are ready to be brought forward for funding 
requests, but it is our intention to continue to support these projects to a 
position where, if viable, they could be brought forward in a future report for 
consideration. 

Page 13



  

 
8.3 There are also examples where officers have been supporting the 

development of a particular project but an opportunity emerged for them to be 
delivered without financial support from SMDC. An example of this is the 
project to refurbish the AstroTurf court at Moorside High School in Werrington 
which officers were involved with for a number of months. It was anticipated 
that this project may require a contribution from this capital fund, however, the 
school identified an excellent opportunity to fully fund the project from another 
source which they chose to pursue instead.  

 
8.4 We understand the refurbishment works to this facility have now been 

completed and that it is open for a range of uses meaning that the desired 
outcome was delivered but without the need to use SMDC funding.   

 
Waterhouses 
 
8.5 Waterhouses Parish Council has aspirations to enhance and improve the lives 

of their local community and work closely with residents to establish where 
financial investment can be best focussed in order to provide maximum 
impact. The Parish Council has worked alongside the local Football Club, 
Council Officers, Staffordshire Football Association and Football Foundation to 
explore how to get the best from their existing sports pitches and also to add a 
second pitch at their site to expand the offer for junior football.  

 
8.6 The sports pitches are located together with a community pavilion and bowling 

green and are owned and maintained by Waterhouses Parish Council. The 
facilities are used by the local community and sports clubs for a range of 
activities and events. The main football pitch requires improvement and, 
during 2019/20, the Club working together with the Parish Council secured a 
six year grant towards a pitch improvement plan from the Football 
Foundation’s national ‘Grass Pitch Maintenance Fund’. 

 
8.7 Funding secured from the Football Foundation will help provide enhanced 

maintenance regimes on both the main pitch and new second pitch, however, 
as the funding award reduces each year, there becomes greater reliance on 
the Club or Parish Council increasing their levels of maintenance in order to 
sustain the overall quality. To assist with this, the Parish Council and club 
intend to carry out some maintenance themselves and wish to purchase their 
own specialist machinery that is capable of undertaking these levels using a 
mixture of paid contractors and/or locally trained volunteers. 

 
8.8 The Parish Council wishes to purchase a suite of specialist maintenance 

equipment including a tractor, roller mower and quadraplay to enable them to 
undertake this work on an ongoing basis at a cost of £26,000. £19,500 (75%) 
of this amount can be secured from the Football Foundation but in order to do 
so, the remaining £6,500 (25%) match funding must have been secured, 
therefore, this forms the basis of the request to allocate £6,500 towards this 
project from the outdoor sports capital fund.  

 
8.9 Should this request be approved, Waterhouses Parish Council will be in a 

position to deliver enhanced maintenance to their sports pitch facilities in a 

Page 14



  

more sustainable manner and allow funds previously spent on maintenance to 
be redirected into other projects which engage the community (particularly 
young people) and encourage them to be more physically active and play an 
positive role in community life.  

 
Whiston 
 
8.10 Kingsley Parish Council has aspirations to improve their local recreation area 

and are developing a project to install a new activity frame, disabled friendly 
swings and other play equipment at the site which would benefit children of 
different ages and abilities. The overall project is costed at c£25,000 and the 
Parish Council are fundraising to secure the amount required from a  range of 
sources.  

 
8.11 It is requested that a £5,000 funding contribution from the outdoor sports 

capital budget be made towards this project to be used as match funding 
against further funding applications to local and national pots that are closely 
aligned to the aims of the project.    

 
8.12 It is anticipated that in the coming year a greater range of projects will begin to 

develop as, in January 2021, the Council appointed a new Service 
Development Officer within the Service Commissioning Team. This role has a 
clear focus on identifying and supporting local projects of this nature and is 
already supporting a potential project in Forsbrook alongside Forsbrook Parish 
Council to make improvements to recreational facilities at Jubilee Gardens. 
The initial plan is to help develop a process of community consultation which 
aims to confirm what improvements residents would like to see, and then, 
where appropriate, develop a costed delivery plan which could lead to a 
request for funds from this budget in the future.   

 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

Service Delivery Overview and Scrutiny Panel  
Work Programme 2021/22 

Date Item Contact Officer 
7 July 2021   

 Rural Sports Villages R Wilks 

 Conservation Area Character Appraisals (Presentation) M James 

8 September 2021   

 Checkley Neighbourhood Plan (TBC) M James 

 Private Sector Housing Strategy incorporating links with the Climate Change 
agenda (TBC) 

M Towers 

 Car Parking Strategy K Webster 

3 November 2021   

 Tourism Strategy S Porru 

 AES Performance Update (TBC)  

 Refreshed Sports & Physical Activity Strategy R Wilks 

 Developer Contributions SPD M James 

19 January 2022   
 Parkwood Annual Performance Update (TBC)  
16 March 2022   

   

TBC   

 Street Assets (Cllr Page) K Webster 

 Strategy for Development of Affordable & Specialist Housing  

 Country Parks - Agreement – Wetley Moor Transfer to SWT N Kemp 

 Fowlchurch Depot Review N Kemp 

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 9



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 To approve the Minutes of the Previous Meeting.
	8 Rural Sports Villages
	9 Work Programme

